
February 22, 2024

Committees and 
Board Meeting 
Packet 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 

Prepared by: 

Tracy Byard
Oceana County Administratorr 

Board of Commissioners 
Tim BeggsTim B
Phil Morse 

Robert Walker, Chairperson
Craig Hardyy 
Paul Erickson

Today's meetings 
begin at 10:00 a.m.

1



PUBLIC NOTICE 
OCEANA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420 – (231) 873-4835 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold the following committee meetings 

and its regular board meeting on Thursday, February 22, 2024 beginning at 10:00 a.m. 
and 11:30 a.m. respectively.  The meetings will be held in the Oceana County Board of

Commissioners Room located at 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

• Finance and Administration Committee

• Regular Board of Commissioners Meeting

Detailed meeting agendas are available online at: 

https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/ 

or, by contacting the County Administrator’s Office at the address shown above, by 

telephone (231) 873-4835, or by email countyadmin@oceana.mi.us 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners has cancelled the following meetings by 

order of the committee/board chairperson due to a lack of business: 

• Properties, Environment and Economic Development Committee

All meetings are open to all members of the public. This notice is given pursuant to, and in accordance with, the 

provisions of the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended.  Oceana County does not discriminate 

on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, and age in the delivery of services. 

County Property Tour Immediately following the Board of Commissioners meeting.

2

https://oceana.mi.us/government/board-of-commissioners/schedule-of-meetings/
mailto:countyadmin@oceana.mi.us


AGENDA 

 Finance and Administration Committee 

There will be a committee meeting on Thursday, February 22, 2024, beginning at 10:00 a.m., or immediately 

following any preceding committee meetings, in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State 

Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Committee Chair:  Craig Hardy        Committee Vice-Chair: Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Item # 

Commissioner 

Hardy 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of Meeting Minutes from February 8, 2024             Pages 

Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Mr. Paul Postal, 

Business Agent, 

FOPLC 

Letter of Understanding requesting a $1.00/hour increase for the FOP Unit #2024-24 

Ms. JoAnn Erway Council on Aging Millage Ballot Proposal             Pages #2024-22 

Mr. Troy 

Maloney, 

Emergency 

Management Dir. 

Renewal Grants for the CodeRed – Emergency Mass Notification System #2024-25 

Administrator 

Byard 

MGT Master Services Agreement for the Friend of the Court  Pages #2024-26 

Administrator 

Byard 

Approval of Contract for Surveying Services for Remonumentation           #2024-27 

Commissioner 

Morse 

District Court Magistrate Wage Increase #2024-28 

Administrator 

Byard 

Administrator’s Review of Selected Claims for Payment      

Administrator’s Report   

#2024-29 

Department Head Reports 

Public Comment (state name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

4 - 6

10 - 39

Pages 7 - 9

557 - 643

Pages 340 - 565

Pages 65 - 77

Pages 78 - 80 

Pages 81 & 82

3



Finance and Administration Committee 

The Finance and Administration Committee Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Hardy on 

Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 10:31 a.m., in the Board Conference Room. 

Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Morse, Mr. Beggs, Mr. Walker, and Mr. Hardy. 

Also Present: Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator; Mr. John Cavanagh, Oceana’s Herald-Journal 

correspondent; Mr. Garry McKeen, Oceana County Parks and Recreation Commission; and Ms. 

Anderson, Oceana County Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Morse and supported by Mr. Beggs to approve the minutes of the January 25, 2024 

Finance and Administration Committee meeting as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Hardy asked if there were any additions to the agenda. No additions were mentioned. 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and seconded by Mr. Beggs to approve the agenda as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Agenda Items 

Administrator Byard brought forth the Parks and Recreation Appointment of Erik Bengston.  Garry 

McKeen stated a few words about Mr. Bengston. 

Administrator Byard brought forth the Designation of Financial Institutions for Deposits and 

Investments. 

Administrator Byard brought forth the Council on Aging Change to Date Ballot Proposal. Discussion 

about what this would entail and how it would affect the other entities in the area ensued. Oceana 

County is only allowed one mill for senior resources.  It was agreed there would be no further action 

taken at this time.  It was suggested The Council on Aging bring forth some further information as to 

how the money is used and if there is any surplus. 

Administrator Byard brought forth discussion regarding combination of the County Clerk and Register 

of Deeds. A benefit brought forth was the possible saving of money.  There was continued discussion 

of the pros and cons of this decision. The consensus was that a majority of the board members were 

not in favor of this moving forward.   

Ms. Byard did not read the claims for payment, but the following was provided: 

Administrator’s Report (as provided by Ms. Byard): 

Oceana County Administrator 

REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures) 

Fund # 

Dept. 

# Dept. Name Amount Purpose 

Special Revenue 

Funds 

4



          

210- Ambulance   $        4,400.00  

to Hesperia Fire Department for 

4th Quarter 2023 MFR costs 

       $        7,150.00  

to Pentwater Fire Department for 

4th Quarter 2023 MFR Costs 

          

239 - Shelby Twp Community Park  $    576,693.73  

to Hallack Contracting, Inc for 

project services. 

       $    584,089.51  

to Hallack Contracting, Inc for 

project services. 

          

256 - Automation Fund R.O.D.   $        1,200.00  to GovOS, Inc for software fees.  

          

286 - ARPA  $      41,400.00  

to Karpel Computer Systems, Inc. 

for Prosecuting Attorney's case 

management software 

       $        1,701.67  

to Karpel Computer Systems, Inc. 

for Prosecuting Attorney's case 

management software 

       $      17,400.00  

to BS&A Software for cloud based 

software implementation 

          

293 - Veterans Affairs    $        2,000.00  

to Raymer Water Wells for 

indigent veteran expense 

          

298 - Technology and Innovation   $        3,770.16  

to SHI International Corp for 

Machinery & Equipment and 

software 

          

549 - Building Department Fund  $        1,102.08  

to BS&A Software for software 

renewal 

General Fund 

    

          

265 - Courthouse & Grounds  $        1,242.50  

to Republic Services for trash 

removal 

          

5



301 - Sheriff  $    1,192.70 to AT&T mobility 

 $    6,851.04 to Wex Bank for fuel purchases 

351 - Jail  $    1,429.80 

to Gordon Food Service for inmate 

boarding 

 $    1,383.15 to City of Hart for Utilities 

 $    1,475.36 to City of Hart for Utilities 

595 - Airport  $    3,500.00 

to Jacobsen/Daniels Associates, 

LLC for independent fee estimate 

for County Airport 

648 - Medical Examiner  $    7,095.42 

to Mid Michigan Medical Examiner 

Group for 3rd Quarter 2023 

Medical Examiner Fees 

 $    7,095.42 

to Mid Michigan Medical Examiner 

Group for 4th Quarter 2023 

Medical Examiner Fees 

~ Total  $ 1,272,172.54 

Administrator’s Report Items (as written by Tracy Byard) 

Administrator Byard attended a meeting with four county administrator’s for a Materials Management 

meeting.  More info will be forthcoming in March.   

Administrator Byard had a meeting with Amy Delinke from MAC regarding opiod settlements. 

Department Head Reports 

There were no department head reports at this time. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Chairperson Hardy asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 11:29 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amy L. Anderson 

Oceana County Clerk 

6



FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE LABOR COUNCIL 
1457 East 12 Mile Road, Madison Heights, Michigan 48071 
 Direct Line (248) 607-9098        Direct Fax (517) 679-5091 
 labor@mifop.com 

February 14, 2024 

Ms. Tracy Byard 
Oceana County Administrator 
100 S. State Street, Suite M-4 
Hart, MI 49420 

Dear Ms. Byard: 

Please allow this memorandum to reflect the union’s (FOPLC) proposal regarding increasing the hourly wage for 
the Sheriff’s Command Unit.  The union proposes a one-dollar (1.00) an hour increase in their base hourly wage.   

I realize this increase has graciously been approved by the County Commission for other union and non-union 
groups within Oceana County. 

Again, thank you for your consideration in this matter and I look forward to hearing from you. 

FOPLC 
1457 East 12 Mile Road 
Madison Heights, Michigan 48071 

/s/ Paul Postal  
Paul Postal 
Business Agent, FOPLC 

7



FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE LABOR COUNCIL 
1457 East 12 Mile Road, Madison Heights, Michigan 48071 
 Direct Line (248) 607-9098        Direct Fax (517) 679-5091 
 labor@mifop.com 

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN  

OCEANA COUNTY 

AND 

OCEANA COUNTY SHERIFF  

AND THE  

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE LABOR COUNCIL 

This Agreement is entered into this 22nd day of February, 2024, between Oceana County and the 
Oceana County Sheriff, hereinafter referred to as the “Employer”, and the Michigan Fraternal Order of 
Police Labor Council, hereinafter referred to as “Union”. 

WHEREAS, The Employer and Union are parties to a collective bargaining agreement, hereinafter 
referred to as Agreement, which is February 11, 2021, and remains in effect until December 31, 2024, 
and:  

WHEREAS The Employer wishes to increase the Lieutenant's wage from $35.2429 to $36.2429 per hour 
for the existing collective bargaining agreement. 

THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Union and the employer agree to modify the current collective bargaining agreement
reference APPENDIX A, WAGES.  The current collective bargaining agreement states:

“Effective January 1, 2024, wages shall be increased for all classes and all steps by two point
five percent (2.5%}. $35.2429/hour; $73,305.23/annual.”

2. The modified language will contain the following added information:

“Effective February 22, 2024, wages shall be increased for all classes and all steps by one dollar
($1.00) an hour into the employee's base hourly wage.  The rate will be $36.2429/hour;
$75,385.23/annual.”

3. Nothing in this Agreement shall modify any other terms or conditions of the Agreement but for
that which is specifically set forth above.

4. Nothing in this Letter of Understanding will not be precedent-setting on either party.

8



5. This Letter of Understanding expires on December 31, 2024, unless renewed through
negotiations.

__________________________________ ______________________________ 
Craig Mast                        Date  Paul D. Postal Jr                 Date 
Sheriff, Oceana County FOPLC Business Agent 

__________________________________ ______________________________ 
Robert Walker    Date Mark Schneider 
Oceana Board Chair  Steward, FOPLC      Date 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



Monumentation Surveyor Agreement 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _________ Day of ___________, 2024, by 
and between the COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, 
acting on behalf of the COUNTY OF OCEANA, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of 
the State of Michigan, (hereinafter referred to as the “County”) and Alex Altmaier, PS,  A & A Land 
Surveying Inc., P.O. Box 186, Hart, Michigan, (hereinafter referred to as the “Monumentation 
Surveyor). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9 of PA 1990, No 345, known as the “State Survey and 
Remonumentation Act” (hereinafter referred to as “1990 PA 345”), the Board is authorized to contract 
with a licensed surveyor, (hereinafter referred to as the Monumentation Surveyor) for all surveying 
projects in Oceana County, as required by the Monumentation and Remonumentation Plan for Oceana 
County; and 

WHEREAS, the County Representative of the Oceana County Remonumentation Program has 
recommended entering into a contract with the Monumentation Surveyor; and 

WHEREAS, the Monumentation Surveyor is licensed to practice in the State of Michigan and 
has offered to provide the County, on an independent contractor basis, the services required under 
Public Act 345 of 1990; and 

WHEREAS, the Board, upon recommendation of the County Representative, accepts the 
Remonumentation Surveyors offer subject to the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter contained,  
IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows. 

I. Scope of Services.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall perform the following services
under the Guidelines of the County Representative (see Appendix B at the end of this
Agreement) and the Requirements set forth in Public Act 345 of 1990, defined in the
Oceana County Monumentation Plan.

A. Preparation and maintenance of a Corner Dossier for each assigned corner.
B. Research of public and private records for information regarding public land corners.
C. Field work including but not limited to:

1. Field Traversing for determining mathematical relationships.
2. Excavation for physical evidence of monumentation of government corners.
3. Setting, restoring and perpetuating physical monumentation for government corners

under requirements of  P.A. 74 of 1970.
4. Establishment of acceptable accessories for all monumented section corners.

D. Preparation of Corner Recordation Certificates under the Guidelines of P.A. 74 of 1970
and the presentation of all data to peer review committee and approval.

65



E. Record keeping of all field activities and Corner research in accord with the Guidelines
of the Oceana County Representative.

F. Record keeping of all time and materials expended to accomplish the above listed tasks.
G. For a list of Corners assigned to be completed, see Appendix A at the end of this

Agreement.

II. Compensation.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall be compensated for services performed
under this agreement the sum of $ 27,965.00.    The contractor will not be paid for
participation in peer review meetings when presenting the contracted corners.

The Monumentation Surveyor shall present an invoice for partial payment in the following
manner:
1) Upon completion of the historical Research of all of the assigned corners prior to any
field activities.  A transcription of the research material for each corner will accompany this
invoice.
2) Upon partial completion of monumenting assigned corners, an invoice may be presented
monthly, or at any other time desired.  Accompanying this invoice will be photocopies of
field notes, Corner Excavation & Search Report, sketches which will include measurement
ties to adjacent gov't corners, evidence considered, description of the monument left at the
site (Part B of LCRC); and witnesses taken (Part C of LCRC).
3) Just prior to the Peer Group meeting an invoice for any remaining corners monumented,
but not covered by previous invoices.  However, the total of all invoices up to this point
may not exceed 80% of total compensation.  Accompanying this invoice will be the
submittal of each Corner Dossier with the required documenting material, including the
draft LCRC's.
4) A final invoice for remaining compensation under this contract after corner approval by
the Oceana County Peer Group, accompanied by Land Corner Recordation Certificates
(LCRC's),  according to Act 74 of 1970, along with any other material requested by the
Peer Group.

Upon the verification of the accuracy of each Invoice by the Oceana County 
Representative, (Mr. J. Randolph Hepworth, PS ) each bill and the sum due there under 
shall be processed and paid in accordance with the County’s expenditure procedure of 
accounts payable. 

III. Hours of Work.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall have control over determining the
days and hours in which he performs work under this agreement.

IV. Monumentation Surveyor’s Office, Tools and Equipment.  The Monumentation Surveyor
shall maintain and utilize his own office while performing services required by this
agreement.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall also, at his own expense, supply all tools,
equipment, supplies and vehicles he needs to perform the services required by this
agreement.

V. Licensing.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Monumentation Surveyor must
maintain a license as a Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Michigan.  If, for any
reason, the Monumentation Surveyor’s license is revoked, suspended, or otherwise not in
effect, such shall be deemed to be an immediate and material breach of this agreement.

66



This agreement shall be deemed terminated on the date that the Monumentation Surveyor is 
no longer licensed as a surveyor in the State of Michigan. 

VI. Applicable Law and Venue.  This agreement shall be construed according to the laws of the
State of Michigan.  It is expressly understood and agreed that in the event any actions in
law  or in equity arising under this Agreement are brought by either party against the other
party, the venue for such actions shall be Oceana County, Michigan.

VII. Compliance with Law.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall render the services required by
this Agreement in complete compliance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations.  The surveyor shall also adhere, at his own expense, to
any rules, regulations, polices or guidelines of the Oceana County Road Commission when
doing any work on a Oceana County road.
Failure to comply with the provisions of this section shall be regarded as a material breach
of this Agreement, and grounds for its immediate termination by the County.

VIII. Protection of Persons and Property.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall ensure that all
precautions are exercised at all times for the protection of persons and property.  The safety
provisions of all applicable laws and codes shall be observed.  The surveyor shall comply
with all Federal and State laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner
affecting the work or performance of this agreement and shall at all times carefully observe
and comply with all rules, ordinances, and regulations.  The surveyor shall secure all
necessary certificates and permits from Municipal or other public authorities as may be
required in connection with the performance of work covered by this agreement.

IX. Non Discrimination.  The Monumentation Surveyor, as required by law, shall not
discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure,
terms, conditions or privileges of employment, or matter directly or indirectly related to
employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, sexual preference,
height, weight, marital  status, political affiliation or beliefs or handicap which is unrelated
to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or positions.

The Monumentation Surveyor shall adhere to all applicable Federal, State and Local laws,
ordinances, rules and regulations prohibiting discrimination, including but not limited to the
following:
A. The Elliot Larsen Civil Right act, 1976 PA 453, as amended.
B. The Michigan Handicappers Civil Rights Act 1976, PA 220 as amended.
C. Section 504 of the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, P.L. 93-112.87 Stat 394 as

amended and regulations adopted thereunder.
D. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, P.L. 101-336, 104 Stat 328 (42 USDA §

12101 et seq), as amended and regulations promulgated thereunder.  Breach of this
section shall be regarded as material breach of this Agreement.  In the event the
Monumentation Surveyor is found not to be in compliance with this section, the County
may terminate this Agreement effective as of the date of delivery of written notification
to the Monumentation Surveyor.

E. The Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:
1. No federal appropriated funds have been paid nor will be paid, by or on behalf

of the Contractor, to any persons for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection

67



with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant,  the 
making of any federal loan, the entering into of any  cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 
federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement. 

2. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or an
employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
grant, the Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions.

X. Independent Contractor.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the Monumentation
Surveyor is an independent Surveyor.  The Monumentation Surveyor and any persons
employed by him shall in no way be deemed to be and shall not hold themselves out as
employees, servants or agents of the County and shall not be entitled to any fringe benefits
of the County, such as, but not limited to, health and accident insurance, life insurance,
longevity, paid sick or vacation leave.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall be responsible
for paying the wages of his personnel and for the withholding and payment of all income
and social security taxes to the proper Federal, State and Local governments.  The
Monumentation Surveyor shall also be responsible for providing its personnel with workers
compensation and unemployment compensation coverage, as required by law.

XI. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. The Monumentation Surveyor shall, at his own
expense, protect,  defend, indemnify and save harmless the County, and its elected and
appointed officers, employees and agents from all claims, damages, costs, law suits and
expenses, including but not limited to all cost for administrative proceedings, court costs
and attorney fees that they may incur as a result of any acts, omissions or negligence of the
Monumentation Surveyor or any of his officers, employees or agents which may arise out
of this Agreement.
The Monumentation Surveyor’s indemnification responsibilities under this section shall
include the sum of damages, costs and expenses which are in excess of the sum paid out on
behalf of or reimbursed to the County, its officers, employees and agents by the insurance
coverage obtained and maintained by the Monumentation Surveyor pursuant to the
requirements of this Agreement.

XII. Liability Insurance

A. The Monumentation Surveyor shall procure, pay the premium on, keep and maintain
during the term of this Agreement, liability insurance coverage with limits of not less
than the following:
1. Workers Compensation :  When and as required by law
2. Employees Liability:  When and as required by law.
3. General Liability (occurrence basis only) with the following coverage inclusions:

a) Broad Form General Liability  Endorsement or equivalent, if not in policy
property.

b) Independent Contractor Coverage.
c) Contractual Liability.

68



4. Vehicle Liability Coverage, and Michigan No-Fault Coverage’s including all
owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles.

5. If available to the Monumentation Surveyor, the Monumentation Surveyor shall
name as an Additional Insured the County, its elected and appointed officials, all
employees and volunteers, all boards, commissions and/or authorities, and their
board members, employees and volunteers for liability they incur which arises out
of this agreement and/or the services to be provided under this Agreement.  It is
expressly understood and agreed that the Monumentation Surveyor’s General
Liability coverage required by this subsection shall be primary to the Additional
Insured and not contributing with any other insurance or similar protection available
to the Additional Insured, whether said other available coverage be primary,
contributing or excess.
In the event the Monumentation Surveyor is unable to meet the Additional Insured
coverage requirements of this section, he shall advise the County of such inability
and provide the County with a letter from his insurance agent verifying his inability
to provide such Additional Insured Coverage.

6. Limits of Liability for Items 4 and 5 above shall not be less that $500,000 per
occurrence, and/or aggregate, combined single limit for Personal Injury, Bodily
Injury and Property Damage.

B. The Monumentation Surveyor shall, during each year in which this Agreement is in
effect, provide the Oceana County Representative with certificates of Insurance
showing the acquisition of the insurance coverage required by this section.  The
certificates of insurance shall contain a provision stating that coverage’s afforded under
the policies will not be changed or canceled until at least thirty  (30) days prior written
notice has been given to the County.

C. In the event the Monumentation Surveyor’s insurance coverage is at anytime reduced or
terminated during the duration of this Agreement, the County may terminate this
Agreement effective immediately upon delivery of notice of termination to the
Monumentation Surveyor.

D. The Monumentation Surveyor may maintain such other insurances as he deems
appropriate for his own protection.

XIII. Reports Regarding State Retired Employees.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall report to
the County’s Grant Administrator at the end of each month that this Agreement is in effect
the name(s), social security number(s) and amount of payment made to any former State of
Michigan employee who:
A. Retired from the State between June 2, 1984 and September 30, 1984 under the

provisions of Acts 2 and 3 of  Public Acts of 1984; and
B. Are less than 62 years of age; and
C. Performed services under this Agreement during the month.
No report is required for any month during which the surveyor had no employee(s) as
described above assigned to work performed under the provisions of this Agreement.

XIV  Waivers.  No Failure or delay on the part of either the County or the Monumentation 
Surveyor in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver 
thereof, nor shall a single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege preclude any 
other or further exercise of any other right, power or privilege.  No Modification, 

69



amendment, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement, nor consent to any departure 
from any provision of this Agreement by either party hereto, shall in any event be effective 
unless the same is in writing and signed by the other party, and then such waiver or consent 
shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the purpose for which  given. 

XV. Modification of Agreement.  Modifications, amendments or waivers of any provisions of
this Agreement may be made only by the written mutual consent of the parties hereto.

XVI. Assignment or Subcontracting.  The parties to this Agreement may not assign, subcontract
or otherwise transfer their duties and/or obligations under this Agreement.

XVII. Disregarding Titles.  The titles of the Sections set fourth in this Agreement are inserted for
the convenience of reference only and shall be disregarded when construing or interpreting
any of the provisions of this agreement.

XVIII. Completeness of Agreement.  This agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed
upon by the parties hereto, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject
matter of this Agreement or any part thereof shall have any validity or bind any of the
parties here to.

XIX. Agreement Period.  The Monumentation Surveyor shall commence performance of the
services and obligations required of it hereunder on, or before, March 1, 2024.  The
Surveyor shall complete all field activities no later than September 15, 2024 and all office
activities no later than October 1, 2024 or whenever all funding is exhausted, whichever
occurs first.  Time being of essence.
Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement may
be terminated by the County upon thirty (30) days, written notice to the Monumentation
Surveyor, in the sole discretion of the County.  In the event of early termination of this
Agreement, the County shall reimburse the Monumentation Surveyor for the services
rendered by the Monumentation Surveyor up to the effective date of termination.

XX Severability of Invalid Provision.  If any part of this Agreement is declared by any Court
having jurisdiction to be invalid, unconstitutional, or beyond the authority of either party to
enter into or carry out, such part shall be deemed deleted and shall not affect the validity of
the remainder of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and effect.  If the
removal of such provisions would result in the illegality and/or unenforceability of this
Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate as of the date in which the provision was found
invalid, unconstitutional or beyond the authority of the parties and the Monumentation
Surveyor shall be reimbursed for all services which it has provided under this Agreement
up to the date of termination.

70



This agreement approved by the  
OCEANA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

On ________________________, 2024 

__________________________________________ 

Robert Walker, Board Chair, Oceana County Board of Commissioners 

And 

On _______________, _____, 2024 

___________________________________________ 

Alex Altmaier, PS 
A & A Land Surveying Inc. 

71



APPENDIX   'A'. 
CORNERS ASSIGNED TO BE COMPLETED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 

Claybanks 
T13N, 
R18W 013 Meander Corner 

Benona 
T14N, 
R18W F02 J08 H10 H12 J12 

Elbridge 
T15N, 
R16W B10 B12 C12 D04 D06 H04 H06 H10 H12 J04 

J06 J08 J10 L06 L08 L10 

72



   APPENDIX   B

OCEANA COUNTY REMONUMENTATION PROGRAM
GUIDELINES OF COUNTY REPRESENTATIVE
adopted by this Office on January 25, 2024
for the Remonumentation Contractual Services Contractor
pertaining to the "Monumentation Surveyor Agreement"

These Guidelines are in addition to and supplement the requirements of 
Agreement to which these Guidelines are attached.

Since time is of the essence, all Field Activities must be completed by Sept. 15, 2024, and all 
Office Activities must be completed by October 1, 2024.

I. PRE-FIELD ACTIVITIES- CORNER HISTORY RESEARCH

Prior to any field site visit, a Corner Dossier
corner. This Corner Dossier will consist of 
for information regarding public land corners
the gathered research, and tabulated in a form that is useful for the Monumentation Surveyor, but 
will also be the major substance shown on Part A of the Land Corner Recordation Certificate 
(LCRC) that will be prepared by the Contract Sur
will include the surveyor (and license number if applicable), source, date of the source or survey, 
monumentation, witnesses, and/or other corner accessories noted on that source.

The Contract Surveyor will familiarize himself with the Corner History
which time it may be determined that gathering further research documentation will
prudent and necessary such as- other previous Surveyors' monumentation, surveys includin
measurements, aerial photographs, USGS topographic maps, 

The Contract Surveyor will be responsible for t
Research will not be considered actually
which the corner is approved. 

Page 1 of 5 

APPENDIX   B 

OCEANA COUNTY REMONUMENTATION PROGRAM 
GUIDELINES OF COUNTY REPRESENTATIVE  

25, 2024 
Remonumentation Contractual Services Contractor (Contract Surveyor) 

"Monumentation Surveyor Agreement" (Contract). 

These Guidelines are in addition to and supplement the requirements of the Scope of Work
Guidelines are attached. 

ll Field Activities must be completed by Sept. 15, 2024, and all 
Office Activities must be completed by October 1, 2024. 

CORNER HISTORY RESEARCH

a Corner Dossier will be prepared and maintained for each assigned 
This Corner Dossier will consist of Corner History Research of public and private records 

for information regarding public land corners which will be obtained, developed, documented 
and tabulated in a form that is useful for the Monumentation Surveyor, but 

will also be the major substance shown on Part A of the Land Corner Recordation Certificate 
(LCRC) that will be prepared by the Contract Surveyor under this Agreement.  The Corner History
will include the surveyor (and license number if applicable), source, date of the source or survey, 
monumentation, witnesses, and/or other corner accessories noted on that source. 

familiarize himself with the Corner History prior to a field site visit
gathering further research documentation will be deem

previous Surveyors' monumentation, surveys includin
USGS topographic maps,  unrecorded surveys, 

he Contract Surveyor will be responsible for the contents of the Corner Dossier.   Corner History
actually complete until the date of the Peer Group meeting at 

Scope of Work of the 

ll Field Activities must be completed by Sept. 15, 2024, and all 

for each assigned 
Research of public and private records 

, documented from 
and tabulated in a form that is useful for the Monumentation Surveyor, but 

will also be the major substance shown on Part A of the Land Corner Recordation Certificate 
veyor under this Agreement.  The Corner History 

will include the surveyor (and license number if applicable), source, date of the source or survey, 

prior to a field site visit at 
deemed 

previous Surveyors' monumentation, surveys including 

.   Corner History 
r Group meeting at 

73



Page 2 of 5 

II. FIELD ACTIVITIES
Corner Excavation & Search:
A thorough search will be made in each corner vicinity for physical evidence of a corner position.
Any search will ensure that multiple monuments do, or do not, exist.  Record will be kept of
evidence observed such as, but not limited to:  occupation lines, ancient fences- including buried
fragments, ancient plow line berms, stone rows, tree lines, road intersections, etc;  existing
monumentation type, condition, other relevant physical description; depth of excavation and
description of soils and whether the excavation is in fill or cut, or whether the material is found at
original soil grade or in a fill or cut section;

Many times multiple objects will found at a corner position, but it will be evident that their origin is 
by different surveyors, and at different times.   A record will be kept as to what object was found 
and at what grade level in relationship to each other and existing ground level.  A statement will be 
made as to your opinion who may have set, or found, the object and when.  This should be done 
whether or not the object is referenced in the Corner History.  It may be necessary to revise the 
Corner History after a field site visit from additional evidence obtained by the Contract Surveyor. 
In order to completely document or verify a Corner position it is usually necessary to excavate and 
remove the first, or upper-most, object found at a corner vicinity.  This is usually necessary to 
ensure that multiple ferrous objects do not exist within a couple of feet of the first object found.  
Also, it may be necessary to continue the excavation to a point that would uncover the earliest 
known corner material from the Corner History, or to a depth that would verify the corner. 

A search will be made for all known monumentation, witnesses, or other corner accessories, that 
have been documented in the Corner History.   A statement will be made for any differences 
between what was actually found and that which was expected to be found based on the historical 
record.  

A statement will be made for each witness object, or accessory, as to its condition, size, type and 
reconciliation of any difference found in its description, or in the bearing and distance to that 
witness object.  Effort will be made to relate any common witnesses that are mentioned in the 
Corner History that may not have been evident when gathering the research material.  For example, 
sometimes tree species will be incorrectly stated in documents found in the recorded research 
(Corner History), but a field visit and observation of the tree will clarify that two supposed 
different trees in the record are actually one tree, or common, to two surveys by different surveyors. 

A statement will be made as whether this found material does, or does not, represent the true 
corner.  This is especially important in the case of the existence of multiple positions for 
supposedly the same corner location.   If multiple positions are found to exist, a statement will be 
made for each position found.   This statement will include the use of the term "Best Available 
Evidence".  In the case of multiple positions, the Contract Surveyor will determine and clearly state 
which position is the location of the 'true corner' (i.e., the one being remonumented), and which 
position may be the location of a Property Controlling Corner and the basis of such determination. 

This "Corner Excavation & Search Report" shall be considered an integral portion of the Corner 
Field Notes.  Field Notes will not be considered complete without a Corner Excavation & Search 
Report.  This Report will be part of the basis for Part B of the LCRC. 

74



Page 3 of 5 

Disposition of found Corner Material:   
It has been the practice of the Oceana County Surveyor/ County Representative from 1993 Grant 
Year to 2021 Grant Year to state what was done with the Found Corner Material.  Typically, the 
practice has been to replace all found Corner Material to be 'beneath'  the new Remonumented 
Corner monument.  Usually this involves driving any iron object with a suitable driver to a point 
that is level with the bottom of the Harrison Cast Iron Monument (HCIM).   Otherwise, any other 
material would be placed in the bottom of the hole, or surrounding the HCIM in some manner.  
Rationale is two-fold:  1) The found material still exists at the corner being monumented and has 
not been simply discarded.  Anyone who desires could re-excavate the corner and verify the 
existence of the old material.  2) Replacement of the old material could facilitate the recovery of 
the Remonumented Corner should it be destroyed in the future for some reason. 

Corner Witnessing: 
Measurements should be made to at least four permanent physical objects in the immediate vicinity 
of the monument.  These permanent objects may be either natural, or man-made, being selected 
based upon the probable life expectancy.  A permanent object will have life expectancy of  at least 
20 years from the date of the survey.   It is preferable to have four objects in the four compass 
quadrants. 

It is preferable, but not absolutely necessary, to reuse a historical witness.  It has generally been the 
practice of the Oceana County Surveyor/County Representative since 1993 to reference and 
witness to all the found historical witnesses in Part C of the LCRC unless that historical witness is 
of little, to no value, for the perpetuation of the remonumented corner, such as in the case of a dead, 
or fallen tree.   Utilizing historical witnesses may result in having more than four witnesses 
especially if they are not oriented in the compass quadrants in a manner to enable the corner 
monument to be accurately replaced if it were to be destroyed. 

Measurements generally shall be made to a 60d (penny) spike with a 1-1/4" diameter metal tag, 
stamped "OC CO REMON", placed to a depth of 2" into the side of the tree, or wood post/pole, 
perpendicular to the line of measurement and at a height between 6" to 24" above grade.  Distance 
measurements shall be horizontal and to the nearest 0.01 feet;  quadrant, or azimuth, compass 
measurements shall be to the center of the object and may be obtained using either a compass, or a 
total-station instrument. 

If an existing spike, or nail, is found on a tree, or wood post or pole, or other object whether the 
witness is a known historical witness or not, it may be used if it projects at least 3" out from the 
tree, or is not likely to be overgrown within 20 years.  If the existing spike projects less than 3" 
from the tree, a new 60d spike and tag should be placed immediately above, or below it and 
referenced as such.   If such existing spike is found to be at a height that is over 24" above grade, a 
statement to its height can be made and measurement taken to it, but a new 60d spike and tag 
should be placed at a standard height between 6" to 24" above grade. 

75



Page 4 of 5 

Corner Monumentation: 
The Standard County Monument utilized under the Remonumentation Program since 1993 has 
been typically a Harrison Cast Iron Monument (HCIM) Series 201, 4" in diameter and 20" long, 
stamped "County Surveyor" and the surveyor license number.  Circumstances at times necessitate 
the substitution of the typical 4" diameter HCIM with a 2-3/4" diameter by 20" long HCIM Series 
202, stamped "County Survey" and the surveyor license number.  And when further circumstances 
dictate that using an HCIM would not be feasible, the Contract Surveyor at his discretion may 
substitute and utilize a 5/8" diameter Iron Rod by 36" minimum length; in the case of unstable, 
and/or swampy, or wet soils a minimum length of 60" will be utilized.  When a 5/8" diameter Iron 
Rod is utilized for the new monument, it will be capped with a minimum 2" diameter cast 
aluminum cap, or its equivalent, stamped "OCEANA COUNTY REMONUMENTATION" and the 
surveyor's license number. 

Oceana County will provide the Contract Surveyor with the needed HCIM's, or the needed cast 
aluminum caps.    The Contract Surveyor will provide any iron rods that might be substituted. 

For Corners that are located in paved roads:  It has been the practice in the past for HCIM's to be 
placed at, or just below the surface of  paved roads.  Until recent years, road surface pavements 
have been simply paved over.  That is typically no longer the case; rather road pavements are now 
being pulverized and then repaved.  Therefore to discourage the removal of the HCIM for road 
repaving projects, HCIM's will be placed to be 12" below the present surface and raised up to the 
surface with an iron rod of a minimum of 1/2" diameter, placed vertical and centered over the 
HCIM., and capped with the Surveyor's license number stamped on it.  A statement to that effect 
will be made on the LCRC for the corner.  The excavated pavement will be repaired with a 
minimum of 2" thickness of cold-patch asphalt.   

If a Corner that is to be monumented under this contract is found to be perpetuated with a 
monument that exceeds the quality of the above-described Standard County Monument, and is in 
an acceptable physical condition, it may be left as found with the approval of the County 
Representative. 

Parole Evidence: 
Any testimony source information used shall be documented in the form of an Affidavit and shall 
be witnessed and signed by all parties and made part of the Corner Dossier. 

Field Traversing: 
Field Traversing will be completed using Michigan State Plane Grid using the appropriate zone for 
the coordinate basis.  Record will be kept of the Zone utilized, the Datum and Adjustment Year, the 
Epoch Date, and the Method for the Coordinate Determination. 

Measurements will be made to the Monumented Corner and any Property Controlling Corners in 
the corner vicinity from the nearest Government Corners in each of the four directions whether 
previously approved by the Peer Group or not.  The Contract Surveyor will prepare a drawing 
report showing the actual measurements to those corners to the nearest 0.01 foot and will also show 
any known historical measurements to those corners indicating name of Surveyor and year of each 

76



Page 5 of 5 

historical measurement shown.  An attempt will be made to reconcile any significant differences 
between the actual measurement and the historical measurement. 

If the corner being remonumented is a Center quarter (C 1/4) corner, a statement will be made as to 
the difference between the position being remonumented and a calculated straight-line intersection 
between opposite previously-approved quarter corners.  This difference will be stated to the nearest 
0.01 foot east-west, and north-south based on the Grid Bearing and Grid Coordinates. 

III. OFFICE  ACTIVITIES

A Report will be provided to the County Representative for each Corner and Property Controlling 
Corner and any non-Government Corner that may have been used to evaluate or verify the corner 
being monumented under this Contract.   That report will be in the following comma delimited text 
formats, using three separate text files:   
a) Michigan State Plane Grid to a minimum of three decimal places;
b) Latitude/Longitude in degrees/minutes/ and seconds to a minimum of four decimal places;
c) Latitude/Longitude in decimal of degrees to a minimum of  ten decimal places.

The Contract Surveyor will prepare a drawing report showing the grid bearing of the lines between 
corners and actual distance measurements to those corners to the nearest 0.01 foot and will also 
show any known historical measurements to those corners indicating name of Surveyor and year of 
each historical measurement shown.   

The Contract Surveyor will notify the County Representative as soon as possible of any significant 
difficulties, or delays that may impact the completion of all Field Activities and all Office 
Activities by the Agreement Date for those activities. 

The Contract Surveyor will provide the County Representative with  original Corner Dossiers for 
each of the corners being remonumented which will include, but not limited to, the all historical 
research material,  Field Notes and Corner Excavation & Search report, any office calculations, 
sketches and final drawings made under this contract. 

Office Activities will not be considered to be complete until the Corner Dossier and a preliminary 
copy of each corner LCRC is provided to the County Representative. 

The Contract Surveyor will provide the County Representative with a signed, stamped original 
LCRC for each corner at the conclusion of the Peer Group meeting at which the corner has been 
approved. 

77



Fund # Dept. # Dept. Name Amount Purpose

Special Revenue Funds

246,620.56$      
to Life EMS for the quarterly service 
agreeement.

2,420.00$          
to Hart Fire Department for 4th Quarter 2023 
MFR Costs

2,194.06$          
to Image Soft for professional services and 
icloud storage

1,658.84$          to GovOS, Inc for software fees. 

11,050.50$        
to Good Law for court appointed attorney 
fees.

8,490.00$          
to Hayes Law Office, PLC for court appointed 
attorney fees. 

5,833.33$          
to Indigent Defense Consultants for 
managed assigned counsel services.

5,289.00$          
to MKG Law Office, PLC for court 
appointed attorney fees. 

10,533.00$        
to Springstead Law Offices for court appointed 
attorney fees. 

5,490.00$          
to Alertus Technologies for maintenance and 
support fees 

1,248.45$          to Pivot Point Partners for software

1,098.48$          to Johnstone Supply for supplies 

1,959.65$          
to RVN Inspections, LLC for permits, residential 
plan reviews, and commercial plan reviews

1,500.00$          

to Shoreline Inspection Service LLC for 
permits, residential plan reviews, and 
commercial plan reviews.

1,150.00$          
to Thomas Story for permits, residential 
plan reviews, and commercial plan reviews.

298 - Technology and Innovation 

549 - Building Department Fund

General Fund

445 - Public Improvement 

Oceana County Administrator
REVIEW OF CLAIMS FOR PAYMENT (>= $1,000 and Other Noteworthy Expenditures)

210- Ambulance

215 - Friend of the Court 

256 - Automation Fund R.O.D. 

260 - Indigent Defense 

78



5,920.37$          
to H Security & Investigation for 
Courthouse Security services

1,445.40$          to Ludington Daily News for ad for election

14,729.34$        
to Spectrum Printers for early voting 
postcard mailings. 

2,004.99$          to City of Hart for utilities

1,203.00$          to Hallack contracting for plowing and salt

1,104.00$          to Jurors for Juror fees. 

4,223.92$          
to Hayes Law Office for monthly 
approprations.

3,300.00$          
to Heacock Reporting for court contracted
services.

1,435.85$          
to Heacock Reporting for court contracted
services.

4,223.92$          
to Springstead Law Offices for monthly
approprations 

1,014.00$          to Thomson Reuters for library periodicals

 $        24,748.02 to Enterprise for fleet vehicle management. 

 $          1,249.80 
to Amazon capital services for machinery 
and equipment

 $        11,232.50 
to Chrouch Communications for machinery 
and equipment 

 $        29,000.00 to Ingham County for radios 

 $        11,689.92 
to Motorola Solutions for equipment and 
machinery 

15,536.15$        
to Advanced Correctional Healthcare for 
inmate medical

3,146.12$          
to Gordon Food Service for inmate 
boarding

3,600.00$          to Hallack Contracting for plowing and salt595 - Airport 

101 - Board of Commissioners

283 - Circuit Court 

262 - Elections 

296 - Prosecuting Attorney 

265 - Courthouse & Grounds

301 - Sheriff

351 - Jail 

79



~ Total 447,343.17$      

80



COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
FEBRUARY 22, 2024 

MAC/MACAO MEETING 

MAC touched on the items that have been included in the Governors proposed budget.  There 

is an increase to the Juvenile Justice and addressing bed shortages as well as behavioral health 

Medicaid services.  There has been $30.5 million set for inmate medical who would have been 

otherwise eligible for Medicaid 90 days before their release.  There have been some funds set aside for 

mental health for Public Safety.  They have full funding set for the MIDC.  They have proposed a 5% 

increase in revenue sharing with an additional 3% if we have allocated all ARPA funds.  Last, there is 

a proposal for a 1289% (yes, 1289) increase to tipping fees which would increase it to $5/ton to deter 

out of state dumping.   

There are two bills as it relates to the Open Meetings Act as it relates to classifying groups, 

however no changes for us.   

They discussed a deficit to road funding, and they are exploring options for this issue. 

MAC MEETING REGARDING OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS 

MAC provided an educational meeting regarding the Opioid Settlement Fund.  Kent County 

presented information regarding their long-standing collaboration committee regarding opioids and the 

support and investing resources in mitigation of the epidemic.  They have many partners involved in 

the process with substance abuse disorder services set as the baseline.  They are collecting data and 

evaluating each area to determine where the funds should be spent.  Eaton County presented as well 

with information pertaining to a steering committee.  The committee decided to work on a strategic 

plan to bring the community to the table and create strategic to build new infrastructure and enforce 

what is working.  They reviewed their process and the meetings that have been held along with the 

information they have gathered for their community needs assessment.   

These meetings are held once a month to look over how other counties are making use of the 

Opioid funds.  I am currently in the process of gathering additional information as it relates to use of 

these funds in county jails and will be providing that information to our group along other avenues for 

use of the funds. 

OCEANA COUNTY ECONOMIC ALLIANCE 

I have been invited to join the OCEA Board.  They met on February 15th.  Curtis Burdette 

highlighted the work with the EDA Workforce Strategy and Rightplace.  He also shared upcoming 

events.  The Committees provided updates for their Executive, Workforce, Development and Outreach 

Committees.  I look forward to being a part of this group.   

81



  

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  
FEBRUARY 22, 2024 

 

AUDIT PREPARATION 

 As previously mentioned, we are in the process of gathering information for the County 

Auditors prior to their field work. 

 

 

  

  

82



AGENDA 

Regular Board Meeting 

The Oceana County Board of Commissioners will hold its Regular Meeting on Thursday, February 22, 2024, 

beginning at 11:30 a.m. in the Oceana County Board of Commissioners Room, 100 State Street, Hart, MI 49420. 

Board Chair: Robert Walker              Board Vice-Chair: Tim Beggs 

Presenter Description Item # 

Chair 

Mr. Morse Council on Aging – Ballot Language 

Motion #2024-22, to rescind Resolution #23-14 and adopt Resolution

#24-04, approving the ballot language proposition for the August election

for the provision of an operating millage for the Oceana County Council on 

Aging.       Roll Call 

#2024-22 

Mr. Beggs Letter of Understanding – Fraternal Order of Police 

Motion #2024-24, to approve the Letter of Understanding between the

Fraternal Order of Police, the Oceana County Sheriff’s Department, and

Oceana County for the proposed wage scale increase to aid in retaining and 

attracting employees to the Oceana County Sheriff’s Department. 

    Roll Call 

#2024-24 

Mr. Hardy Renewal Grants for the CodeRed – Emergency Mass Notification System 

Motion #2024-25, to approve two alignment and allowability forms for

Emergency Management for the renewal of CodeRed, the County’s
emergency mass notification system, with funds to be paid from the State 

Homeland Security Grant Program. 

     Roll Call 

#2024-25 

Mr. Erickson MGT Master Services Agreement for the Friend of the Court 

Motion #2024-26, to approve the MGT Master Services Agreement for the

Oceana County Friend of the Court for the purpose of Title IV-D Claiming 

services and automated time log processing and allow the Chair to sign. 

   Roll Call 

#2024-26 

Oceana County Board of Commissioners 
County Building 

100 State Street, Suite M-4, Hart, MI  49420 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Approval of minutes from February 8, 2024 Pages 85 - 87 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Regarding Agenda Items 

Changes to the Agenda 

Approval of the Agenda 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

83



Presenter Description Item # 

Mr. Beggs Contract for Surveying Services 

Motion #2024-27, to approve the Monumentation Surveyor Agreement with

Alex Altmaier, PS, A & A Land Surveying, for the purpose of all surveying 

projects in Oceana County as required by the Monumentation and 

Remonumentation Plan for Oceana County and allow the Chair to sign. 

  Roll Call 

#2024-27 

Mr. Morse District Court Magistrate Wage Increase 

Motion #2024-28, to align the District Court Magistrate's wages with the pay

scale set by the adoption of the FY-2024 budget. 

   Roll Call 

#2024-28 

Mr. Hardy Payment of Claims #2024-29 

REPORTS FROM COMMISSIONERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS 

Public Comment (state your name, current address, and agenda item or topic) 

Adjournment Pages 88 - 90

84



Board Conference Room 
February 8, 2024 
Board of Commissioners Minutes 

The regular meeting of the Oceana County Board of Commissioners was called to order by Chairperson 

Walker, on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at 11:39 a.m. 

Chairperson Walker led the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 

America. 

Roll was called by Clerk Anderson. Present: Mr. Erickson, Mr. Morse, Mr. Beggs, Mr. Hardy, and Mr. 

Walker.  

Also Present: Ms. Byard, Oceana County Administrator; Mr. John Cavanagh, Oceana’s Herald-Journal 

correspondent; Hon. John Middlebrook, 79th District Court Judge; and Ms. Anderson, Oceana County 

Clerk. 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Hardy to approve the minutes from the January 25, 2024 

Regular Board Meeting as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Chairperson Walker asked if any commissioners wished to declare any conflicts of interest on the 

agenda items. No conflicts were declared. 

Chairperson Walker asked if there were any additions to the agenda.  Mr. Hardy mentioned that the 

Motion #2024-22 be removed as no action will be taken. No additions were mentioned. 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Morse to approve the agenda as presented. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 

There were no public comments at this time. 

Agenda Items 

MOTION #2024- 19– VILLAGE OF HESPERIA LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Moved by Mr. Beggs and supported by Mr. Hardy to approve the Village of Hesperia Law Enforcement 

Service Agreement with Oceana County to expire on December 31, 2024, to be retroactive to January 

1, 2024, and allow the Chair to sign. 

Roll call vote: Mr. Beggs – yes; Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Morse – yes; and 

Mr. Walker – yes. 

Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024 – 20 – APPOINTMENT TO THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

Moved by Mr. Erickson and supported by Mr. Beggs to appoint Mr. Erik Bengston to the Parks & 

Recreation Commission for an unexpired term to expire on December 31, 2025. 

Voice vote. Motion carried. 

MOTION #2024 – 21 – DESIGNATION OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS FOR DEPOSITS AND 

INVESTMENTS 

85



Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Erickson designating the following financial institutions for 

the deposits and investments for Oceana County Funds to be utilized at the discretion of the Oceana 

County Treasurer during the fiscal year 2024: 

Shelby State Bank 

Fifth Third Bank 

West Shore Bank 

Huntington Bank 

Flagstar Bank 

Lake Osceola Bank 

Multibank Securities 

Michigan CLASS Investments 

CDARS-Government Authorized Investment Group 

CIBC formerly known as Private Bank 

Roll call vote: Mr. Hardy– yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Morse – yes; Mr. Beggs – yes; and 

Mr. Walker – yes. 

Motion carried. 

Mr. Erickson commended Ms. Phillips, Oceana County Treasurer, regarding the management of 

investments for the county.  Mr. Walker agreed. 

MOTION #2024-23 – PAYMENT OF CLAIMS 

Moved by Mr. Hardy and supported by Mr. Beggs, to adopt Motion #2024-23, approving the payment 

of accounts payable and release of funds for February 8, 2024. 

AMBULANCE $12,499.02 

GIS -0-

FOC -0-

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL -0-

SHELBY TWP COMM PARK 1,160,783.24 

BROWNFIELD -0-

AUTOMATION R.O.D.   1,200.00 

INDIGENT DEFENSE 4,691.15 

LCOT -0-

K9 UNIT 

CJT 

-0-

-0-

CDBG -0-

ARPA 60,501.67 

VETERANS AFFAIRS 6,084.95 

TECH & INNOVATION 5,732.87 

CAPITAL PROG/EQUIP REP -0-

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT -0-

FORECLOSURE -0-

BUILDING DEPARTMENT   2,806.08 

GENERAL FUND 284,613.97 

GRAND TOTAL $1,538,912.95 

Roll call vote: Mr. Hardy – yes; Mr. Erickson – yes; Mr. Morse – yes Mr. Beggs – yes; and 

Mr. Walker – yes. 

Motion carried. 

86



Commissioner’s Reports 

Mr. Beggs requested of the administrator to get a date set for the walk through of the Health 

Department, County Building and the Sheriff Department storage area.   It was decided to make a 

walk through of the Health Department after the next board meeting. 

Mr. Hardy mentioned Life EMS has funds set aside for CAD to CAD.  911 is working to activate the 

system.  Mr. Walker suggested a virtual tour of Life EMS Dispatch in Grand Rapids. 

Mr. Morse felt that discussions are good for making good decisions.  In the Michigan Works meeting it 

was brought up that the company Goshen (battery plant) in Grand Rapids is finding it difficult to find 

people to work and meet the qualifications the company has set in place. 

Mr. Erickson reported that there have been some investments in the village of Walkerville.  He reported 

that the Medical Care Facility census is around 89 beds and the losses have leveled off.  The staffing 

is getting better.  He also stated that the DHHS building on Polk Road has very few employees working 

in the building, most are working from home.  There have been interviews for a new director due to 

the retirement of Ms. Janet Vyse-Staszak.   

Mr. Walker stated there was a very productive Land Bank meeting last week.  The bank is looking at 

bigger projects which included Hart Co-op and Barber Steel. Brownfield has the ability to take on larger 

projects.  There are other small projects being done with some of the townships.  He commended 

Mary Lou Phillips leadership that has helped the Land Bank come a long way.  He asked everyone to 

take a moment and think about the loss of one of our former commissioners who was lost last week 

and the value the person brought to our county. 

Public Comment 

District Court Judge Middlebrook requested the board to reconsider and approve the $1.00/hour raise 

for Adriana Facundo.  Mr. Erickson had spoken with the judge regarding the issue.  Mr. Walker 

recommended a meeting with the personnel committee regarding the issue.   

Ms. Anderson reminded the board the deadline to file for the May election is February 13.  If the 

Council on Aging chooses to have the millage removed from the May ballot, the Board would need to 

rescind the resolution that authorized it to be on the ballot, or the Council on Aging would need to 

withdraw the request for it to be on the May ballot.  This would need happen prior to the next board 

meeting. 

Chairperson Walker asked if there was any further business to come before the Board. There being 

none, the meeting adjourned at 12:13 p.m. 

_______________________________ 

Amy L. Anderson, Oceana County Clerk 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Date Mr. Walker, Chairperson 

87



FUND DEPT # DEPARTMENT PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL
210 AMBULANCE 3 248,326.73$  3,191.00$  251,517.73$  

AMBULANCE FUND TOTAL 248,326.73$  3,191.00$  251,517.73$  
211 GIS -$  -$  -$  

GIS FUND TOTAL -$  -$  -$  
215 FOC -$  2,194.06$  2,194.06$  

FOC PAYROLL 3 -$  -$  -$  
FOC FICA 3 -$  -$  -$  
FOC RETIREMENT 3 -$  -$  -$  
FOC FRINGE 3 -$  -$  -$  
WORKERS COMP 3 -$  -$  -$  

FOC FUND TOTAL -$  2,194.06$  2,194.06$  
238 PENTWATER-HART TRAIL -$  -$  -$  

PENTWATER-HART TRAIL FUND TOTAL -$  -$  -$  
239 SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK -$  -$  -$  

SHELBY TWP COMMUNITY PARK FUND TOTAL -$  -$  -$  
243 BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY -$  -$  -$  

           BROWNFIELD REDEVELOP. AUTHORITY TOTAL -$  -$  -$  
256 AUTOMATION R.O.D. -$  1,658.84$  1,658.84$  

AUTOMATION R.O.D. FUND TOTAL -$  1,658.84$  1,658.84$  
260 INDIGENT DEFENSE -$  42,059.83$  42,059.83$  

INDIGENT DEFENSE PAYROLL 3,037.67$  -$  3,037.67$  
INDIGENT DEFENSE FICA 3 232.38$  -$  232.38$  
INDIGENT DEFENSE RETIREMENT 3 -$  -$  -$  
INDIGENT DEFENSE FRINGE 3 1,808.94$  -$  1,808.94$  
WORKERS COMP 3 -$  -$  -$  

INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND TOTAL 5,078.99$  42,059.83$  47,138.82$  
264 LCOT 84.00$  -$  84.00$  

LCOT PAYROLL 3 -$  -$  -$  
LCOT FICA 3 -$  -$  -$  
LCOT RETIREMENT 3 -$  -$  -$  
WORKERS COMP 3 -$  -$  -$  
RETIREMENT 3 -$  -$  -$  

LOCT FUND TOTAL 84.00$  -$  84.00$  
267 K9 UNIT -$  239.97$  239.97$  

K9 UNIT FUND -$  239.97$  239.97$  
272 CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING -$  -$  -$  

CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING FUND TOTAL -$  -$  -$  
277 CDBG -$  -$  -$  

CDBG FUND TOTAL -$  -$  -$  
286 ARPA 167.78$  167.78$  

APRA FUND TOTAL 167.78$  -$  167.78$  
293 DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS 562.98$  269.60$  832.58$  

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS PAYROLL 3 3,909.05$  -$  3,909.05$  
DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FICA 3 295.78$  -$  295.78$  
DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS RETIREMENT 3 -$  -$  -$  

Board Approval of Accounts Payable & Release of Funds
Thursday, February 22, 2024

88



DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FRINGE 3 1,665.61$  -$  1,665.61$  
WORKERS COMP 3 -$  -$  -$  

DEPT OF VET AFFAIRS FUND TOTAL 6,433.42$  269.60$  6,703.02$  
298 TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION 1,351.39$  7,666.37$  9,017.76$  

TECHNOLOGY & INNOVATION FUND TOTAL 1,351.39$  7,666.37$  9,017.76$  
405 CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE -$  -$  

CAPITAL PROJ-EQUIP REPLACE FUND TOTAL -$  -$  -$  
445 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT -$  1,098.48$  1,098.48$  

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT FUND TOTAL -$  1,098.48$  1,098.48$  
549 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 6,230.72$  6,230.72$  

BUILDING DEPARTMENT PAYROLL 3 2,450.32$  -$  2,450.32$  
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FICA 3 182.84$  -$  182.84$  
BUILDING DEPARTMENT RETIREMENT 3 -$  -$  -$  
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FRINGE 3 2,197.67$  -$  2,197.67$  
WORKERS COMP 3 -$  -$  -$  

BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND TOTAL 11,061.55$  -$  11,061.55$  
101 GENERAL FUND PR# PAID UNPAID TOTAL

101 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 5,987.57$  620.00$  6,607.57$  
172 ADMINISTRATOR/FISCAL OFFICER 507.20$  409.98$  917.18$  
208 INSURANCE 100.00$  -$  100.00$  
209 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION -$  -$  -$  
215 COUNTY CLERK -$  253.95$  253.95$  
216 JURY BOARD -$  -$  -$  
217 APPORTIONMENT -$  -$  -$  
223 COUNTY AUDITING -$  -$  -$  
228 DATA PROCESSING -$  144.84$  144.84$  
229 TECHNOLOGY 22.99$  -$  22.99$  
244 TAX ALLOCATION -$  -$  -$  
245 REMONUMENTATION -$  -$  -$  
248 GENERAL SERVICES 681.77$  419.88$  1,101.65$  
249 PLAT BOARD -$  -$  -$  
250 MICROFILM -$  -$  -$  
253 COUNTY TREASURER 200.00$  65.32$  265.32$  
257 EQUALIZATION -$  -$  -$  
262 ELECTIONS -$  16,337.43$  16,337.43$  
265 COURTHOUSE/GROUNDS 2,351.44$  2,001.24$  4,352.68$  
283 CIRCUIT COURT 1,587.57$  14,699.63$  16,287.20$  
286 DISTRICT COURT 701.69$  423.30$  1,124.99$  
289 FRIEND OF THE COURT 479.27$  420.06$  899.33$  
294 PROBATE COURT 3.66$  620.00$  623.66$  
295 PROBATION/PAROLE -$  -$  -$  
296 PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 429.34$  1,193.26$  1,622.60$  
298 FAMILY COUNSELING -$  -$  -$  
301 SHERIFF 24,961.98$  59,904.87$  84,866.85$  
331 MARINE LAW -$  -$  -$  
332 SNOWMOBILE ENFORCEMENT -$  -$  -$  
333 ROAD PATROL -$  -$  -$  
351 JAIL 19,647.33$  1,598.40$  21,245.73$  

89



426 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 50.00$  120.99$  170.99$  
430 ANIMAL CONTROL 515.24$  932.35$  1,447.59$  
442 DRAIN COMMISSIONER 37.49$  134.00$  171.49$  
445 DRAINS - PUBLIC BENEFIT -$  -$  -$  
528 TRANSFER STATION/RECYCLING CENTER -$  757.86$  757.86$  
568 SOIL CONSERVATION -$  -$  -$  
595 AIRPORT -$  3,964.12$  3,964.12$  
601 HEALTH DEPARTMENT 783.38$  771.00$  1,554.38$  
605 CONTAGIOUS DISEASES -$  -$  -$  
648 MEDICAL EXAMINER -$  1,204.84$  1,204.84$  
649 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH -$  -$  -$  
701 PLANNING COMMISSION -$  101.10$  101.10$  
710 MSU EXTENSION -$  -$  -$  
711 REGISTER OF DEEDS -$  50.06$  50.06$  
728 EDC -$  -$  -$  

GENERAL PAYROLL 3 238,449.99$  -$  238,449.99$  
GENERAL FICA 3 17,869.85$  -$  17,869.85$  
GENERAL RETIREMENT 3 -$  -$  -$  
GENERAL FRINGE 3 120,050.69$  -$  120,050.69$  
WORKERS COMP 3 -$  -$  -$  

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 435,418.45$  107,148.48$                 542,566.93$  
GRAND TOTAL 707,922.31$  165,526.63$                 873,448.94$  

GENERAL FUND WITHOUT PAYROLL 59,047.92$  

90


	Cover
	Public Notice
	Finance and Admininstration Committee
	Minutes
	FOP Letter of Understanding
	Council on Aging Ballot Proposal
	Emergency Managment CodeRed Renewal
	MGT of America Consulting Master Services Agreement for FOC
	Surveyor Agreement
	Administrator's Review of Claims
	Administrator's Report

	Regular Agenda
	Minutes
	Claims for Payment




